MINUTES of MEETING of ENVIRONMENT, DEVELOPMENT AND INFRASTRUCTURE COMMITTEE held in the SKYPE on THURSDAY, 3 JUNE 2021

Present: Councillor Robin Currie (Chair)

Councillor Rory Colville Councillor Aileen Morton
Councillor John Armour Councillor Alastair Redman

Councillor Donald Kelly Councillor Alan Reid

Councillor David Kinniburgh Councillor Andrew Vennard

Councillor Roderick McCuish
Councillor Sir Jamie McGrigor
Councillor Jim Lynch
Councillor Jean Moffat
Councillor Bobby Good

Also Present: Councillor Jim Findlay

Attending: Kirsty Flanagan, Executive Director

Jim Smith, Head of Roads and Infrastructure Services

Fergus Murray, Head of Development and Economic Growth

lain MacInnes, Digital Liaison Officer Stuart McLean, Committee Manager

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Gary Mulvaney.

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Councillor Alan Reid declared a non-financial interest in item 7 of the agenda (Local Flood Risk Management – Draft Local Flood Risk Management Plans for Cycle 2) by virtue that he owns a property in an area proposed to be the subject of a flood study. He advised that he would leave the meeting during consideration of this item.

3. MINUTES

The Minutes of the meeting of the Environment, Development and Infrastructure Committee held on 4 March 2021 were approved as a correct record.

4. PERFORMANCE REPORT FQ4 2020-21 - DEVELOPMENT AND ECONOMIC GROWTH & ROADS AND INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES

The Committee gave consideration to the Development and Economic Growth Services and Roads and Infrastructure Services performance report and associated scorecard for performance in financial quarter 4 2020-21.

Decision

The Environment, Development and Infrastructure Committee noted the content of the financial guarter 4 2020-21 scorecard as presented.

(Reference: Report by Executive Director with responsibility for Customer Support Services dated 20 April 2021, submitted)

5. ROADS CAPITAL RECONSTRUCTION PROGRAMME 2021/22

The Committee gave consideration to a report providing details of the finalised roads reconstruction £10m programme for 2021/22.

Decision

The Environment, Development and Infrastructure Committee -

- 1. Noted the content of the report.
- Requested that a report be brought to a future meeting of the Committee providing detail on the number of contracts outsourced by the Council within the Argyll and Bute Council area; and the number of contracts the Council have pursued externally over the previous three year period.

(Reference: Report by Executive Director with responsibility for Roads and Infrastructure dated April 2021, submitted)

6. ELECTRIC VEHICLE CHARGING STRATEGY

The Committee gave consideration to a report providing a further update on the development of a medium to long term future strategy for electric vehicle charging infrastructure across Argyll and Bute following on from the December 2020 update.

Decision

The Environment, Development and Infrastructure Committee -

- 1. Noted the detail of Electric Vehicle Charging Strategy Part 1 Introduction and Cost Recovery Model at Appendix One of the submitted report.
- 2. Agreed the outline development methodology at Appendix Two of the submitted report.
- 3. Noted that more detailed discussions with members regarding potential sites in their areas at a Member Development Day would be held prior to a further report being considered at Committee before a consultation exercise.

(Reference: Report by Executive Director with responsibility for Roads and Infrastructure dated 13 April 2021, submitted)

Having previously declared an interest in the following item of business, Councillor Alan Reid left the meeting and took no part in the consideration of this item.

7. LOCAL FLOOD RISK MANAGEMENT - DRAFT LOCAL FLOOD RISK MANAGEMENT PLANS FOR CYCLE 2

The Committee gave consideration to a report outlining the process that has been used to formulate the draft list of actions as worked up with Scottish Environment Protection Agency (SEPA) to address flood risk.

Decision

The Environment, Development and Infrastructure Committee –

- 1. Agreed that the prioritised list of actions represents the Council's preferred order for dealing with flood risk, subject to funding being made available.
- 2. Noted the work undertaken to date in partnership with SEPA to allow SEPA to publish draft Flood Risk Management Strategy information for joint consultation on 30 July 2021.
- 3. Agreed to the publication of the potential Actions for the Local Flood Risk Management Plan for Highland and Argyll Local Plan District and Local Flood Risk Management Plan for Clyde and Loch Lomond Local Plan District on 30 July 2021, as shown in Appendix A to the submitted report.

(Reference: Report by Executive Director with responsibility for Roads and Infrastructure dated 10 May 2021, submitted)

Councillor Alan Reid re-joined the meeting at this point.

8. CAMPBELTOWN FLOOD PROTECTION SCHEME

The Committee gave consideration to a report providing an update on the progress with the Campbeltown Flood Protection Scheme, including the funding position and making recommendations in order for the project to progress.

Decision

The Environment, Development and Infrastructure Committee –

- 1. Approved the invitation to tender for the construction of the main flood scheme and supply and installation of property flood resilience measures.
- 2. Noted that a paper detailing the full Business Case would be brought back to the Committee in September 2021. Construction of the final scheme would be subject to approval of Full Business Case prior to tender award.

(Reference: Report by Executive Director with responsibility for Roads and Infrastructure dated 10 May 2021, submitted)

9. TACKLING DOG FOULING

The Committee gave consideration to a report providing an update on the matter of dog fouling, the Council's available resource to manage this issue and promoting a social media campaign to educate irresponsible individuals who don't clean up after their dogs.

Decision

The Environment, Development and Infrastructure Committee –

- 1. Welcomed and endorsed the ongoing work to help reduce dog fouling.
- 2. Approved the proposals to introduce a campaign around dog fouling.

- 3. Recognised that everyone has a part to play in the campaign, and noted that Councillor Robin Currie, as Committee Chair and Council Leader, will write to all community councils in Argyll and Bute and other partners seeking their assistance in this partnership approach.
- 4. Agreed the content of the dog fouling briefing and campaign posters in Appendix 1 of the submitted report, and instructed the production of additional posters for provision to community councils in order that the message is circulated even more widely across Argyll and Bute.

(Reference: Report by Executive Director with responsibility for Roads and Infrastructure dated April 2021, submitted)

10. TOWN CENTRE FUND UPDATE

The Committee gave consideration to a report providing an update on Town Centre Capital Funding from Scottish Government.

Decision

The Environment, Development and Infrastructure Committee noted the content of the report and that £1.685m had been fully committed to twenty-eight Town Centre projects.

(Reference: Report by Executive Director with responsibility for Development and Economic Growth dated 20 April 2021, submitted)

11. DIGITAL UPDATE

The Committee gave consideration to a report providing an overview regarding the progress of the Scottish Government's Reaching 100% (R100) initiative.

Decision

The Environment, Development and Infrastructure Committee –

- 1. Noted the progress of the R100 programme and delays that had hindered its progress and the measures Scottish Government had taken to mitigate these delays.
- 2. Agreed to pause further development of a bid to the Rural Gigabit Fund (renamed "Place") with the recommendation that these sites had been given early indication by Scottish Government officials that they were covered within the R100 Programme.

(Reference: Report by Executive Director with responsibility for Development and Economic Growth dated 28 April 2021, submitted)

12. WASTE STRATEGY UPDATE

The Committee gave consideration to a report providing an update on the Waste Strategy Project.

Decision

The Environment, Development and Infrastructure Committee –

- 1. Noted the content of the report and the progress made with the Scottish Government.
- 2. Noted the shortlist of projects for the Recycling Infrastructure Fund prepared by Officers.
- Noted the successful joint procurement of a Residual and Bulky Waste Contract and further noted the new community benefits that had been secured as part of the successful joint procurement.
- 4. Noted the details of the high level Waste Strategy project timeline.
- 5. Endorsed that additional lobbying be taken forward at both a political and officer level with the Scottish Government to ensure that the biodegradable municipal waste (BMW) plan has no financial detriment to Argyll and Bute Council.

(Reference: Report by Executive Director with responsibility for Roads and Infrastructure dated 3 June 2021, submitted)

13. UPDATE ON STAYCATION PROPOSALS

The Committee gave consideration to a report outlining the infrastructure to be put in place by the Council to assist in the recovery of the tourism industry and in anticipation of additional staycation pressures on local communities following the impact of the Covid-19 pandemic.

Decision

The Environment, Development and Infrastructure Committee noted the progress to date and that this is an evolving process with milestones throughout the year and beyond.

(Reference: Report by Executive Director with responsibility for Development and Economic Growth dated 11 May 2021, submitted)

14. COMMUNITY EMPOWERMENT (SCOTLAND) ACT 2015 - ALLOTMENTS WAITING LIST REGISTER

A report providing an update on the actions that have been taken in response to the duties placed on the Council under Part 9 of the Community Empowerment (Scotland) Act 2015 was before the Committee for noting.

Decision

The Environment, Development and Infrastructure Committee noted the Allotments Waiting List Register update which reflects the duties placed on local authorities arising from Part 9 – Allotments, of the Community Empowerment (Scotland) Act 2015.

(Reference: Report by Executive Director with responsibility for Legal and Regulatory Support dated 23 April 2021, submitted)

15. ENVIRONMENT, DEVELOPMENT AND INFRASTRUCTURE COMMITTEE WORKPLAN

The Environment, Development and Infrastructure Committee Workplan was before the Committee for noting.

Decision

The Environment, Development and Infrastructure Committee noted the content of the work plan.

(Reference: Environment, Development and Infrastructure Committee Workplan dated June 2021, submitted)